
 

Agenda - External Affairs and Additional Legislation 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

Meeting date: 10 February 2020 

Meeting time: 13.15

For further information contact: 

Rhys Morgan 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEAAL@assembly.wales
------ 

Private pre-meeting  

(13.15-13.30) 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(13.30)   

2 Scrutiny session with the Minister for International Relations and 

the Welsh Language 

(13.30-14.30) (Pages 1 - 40)  

Eluned Morgan AM, Minister for International Relations and the Welsh 

Language 

Andrew Gwatkin - Welsh Government 

Emma Edworthy - Welsh Government 

3 Papers to note 

(14.30-14.35)   

3.1 Paper to note 1: Correspondence from the Counsel General and Brexit 

Minister to the Chair regarding the Committee's report - Common policy 

frameworks: Assembly Scrutiny 

 (Pages 41 - 49)  

3.2 Paper to note 2: Correspondence from the Parliamentary Under Secretary of 

State for Exiting the European Union to the Chair regarding the Withdrawal 

Agreement Bill - 29 January 2020 

 (Page 50)  

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



3.3 Paper to note 3: Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's 

report on UK international agreements after Brexit 

 (Pages 51 - 54)  

3.4 Paper to note 4: Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's 

report on the Welsh Government's draft international strategy 

 (Pages 55 - 59)  

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) and (ix) to resolve to 

exclude the public from the remainder of the meeting 

(14.35)   

5 Scrutiny session with the Minister for International Relations and 

the Welsh Language - consideration of evidence 

(14.35-14.50)   

6 Consideration of the Government's response to the Committee's 

report on common policy frameworks 

(14.50-14.55)   

7 Scrutiny of international agreements 

(14.55-15.10) (Pages 60 - 84)  

8 Consideration of forward work programme 

(15.10-15.30) (Pages 85 - 87)  

9 Consideration of change to the remit of the Committee 

(15.30-15.40) (Pages 88 - 92)  



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Jeremy Miles AC/AM 
Y Cwnsler Cyffredinol a Gweinidog Brexit  
Counsel General and Brexit Minister  

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

YPCCGB@llyw.cymru / PSCGBM@gov.wales 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref MA-CG-0161-20 
 
 
 
David Rees AM,  
Chair of the EAAL Committee  
David.Rees@assembly.wales  
 
 

23 January 2020 
 
Dear David 
 
I would like to thank the EAAL Committee for its report ‘Common policy frameworks: 

Assembly Scrutiny’.  Common Frameworks are intended to enable shared decision making 

across the four governments of the UK and a transparent and cooperative approach to 

policy decision making in areas of devolved competence.   

As mentioned in my letters of 1 March and 23 October 2019 the Welsh Government 

recognises the Senedd’s crucial role, alongside the other three legislatures of the UK, in the 

scrutiny, development, implementation and oversight of future frameworks.  The UK 

Government has similarly stated that it remains fully committed to openness and scrutiny in 

relation to the formation of Common Frameworks.  

We wish to maintain the constructive spirit in which we have been working together, and 

also our commitment to transparency and the importance of scrutiny.  In line with the above 

points about the nature of the Common Frameworks programme, in this response I have 

responded provisionally to several of the Committee’s recommendations. This is for two 

reasons:  

1. This is a highly complex and challenging set of objectives.  The Welsh Government is 

committed to protecting devolved competence through the Common Frameworks 

programme so that policies can be developed to meet the needs of people in Wales.  

I also recognise the impact and connection between our policies and the policies of 

the other governments of the UK in these areas, as well as the connection with future 

international trade agreements (including with the EU).  The benefit – and indeed the 

principal challenge – of the Frameworks programme is that it requires agreement 

between the four governments of the UK.  Progressing Common Frameworks at a 

UK level to meet these evolving and various Welsh needs is an ongoing and multi-

faceted challenge.  Where there are areas currently under inter-governmental 

discussion and policy development, I have committed to provide an update by the 

end of March 2020.   

 

Pack Page 41

Agenda Item 3.1

mailto:YPCCGB@llyw.cymru


2. The Common Frameworks programme is a discrete area of work comprising specific 

policy areas identified in the context of EU Exit and under the Intergovernmental 

Agreement which accompanied the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018. Good 

practice from the programme may inform other intergovernmental working, and is 

being shared on a regular basis with the separate but linked Intergovernmental 

Relations Review, for example. But the programme’s scope is specifically defined. In 

this response I am referring to Common Frameworks as described in the Analysis of 

the Frameworks programme produced by the UK Government’s Cabinet Office in 

April 2019 which was produced in collaboration with the other governments of the 

UK.  

 

I wish to ensure that I respond clearly in relation to the Common Frameworks programme.  

Where the specific request around Common Frameworks is not clear to me, I have asked 

the Committee to provide more information on its request on Common Frameworks, to allow 

me to respond fully. I shall be happy to write subsequently to the committee.  

I agree with many of the principles behind the Committee recommendations and I do not 

believe there is fundamental disagreement between us on the basic direction for the 

Frameworks programme.  I do believe there is an opportunity for us to continue to work 

closely together to inform and share information on the progress of Common Frameworks 

and ensure timely scrutiny and discussion with legislatures as the work progresses.   

 

Responses to the Committee’s Recommendations 

 

Recommendation 1 

We recommend that, in written response to this report, the Welsh Government commits to 

notify the Assembly when legislation, whether to be considered by the Assembly or the UK 

Parliament, relates to a UK-wide common policy framework. 

 

Response: Accept.  

 

The government accepts the recommendation on the basis that the reference to ‘UK-wide 

common policy framework’ refers to the Common Frameworks Programme. This will be 

referred to as ‘Common Frameworks’. The process for the agreement of Common 

Frameworks must be inclusive and transparent. I will ensure that it is made clear to the 

Senedd when legislation relates to any of the Common Frameworks under discussion 

between the governments of the UK.  

If, however, this recommendation refers to general intergovernmental working the First 

Minister is considering how best to facilitate the scrutiny of intergovernmental agreements 

and would welcome the views of the Committee. 

 

Financial Implications: N/A  

Recommendation 2 

Pack Page 42



We recommend that the Business Committee considers whether Standing Orders should be 

amended to require a member of the Welsh Government to notify the Assembly in the terms 

described in our first recommendation. 

 

This recommendation is for the Business Committee to consider.   
 

Recommendation 3 

We recommend that the Welsh Government reviews all legislation passed in the Fifth 

Assembly to assess whether or not it relates to a UK-wide common policy framework area. 

This review should be conducted by the end of February 2020 to ensure that the Assembly 

has this information before the majority of frameworks are ready for scrutiny. 

 

Response: Completed  

No legislation passed in the Fifth Assembly relates to any of the Common Frameworks. 

 

Financial Implications: N/A. 

 

 

Recommendation 4  

If the Welsh Government’s review identifies legislation that relates to one of the framework 
areas currently under development, it should: 

▪ notify this Committee and the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee in writing; 
and 

▪ ensure that the explanatory material accompanying the eventual outline framework that is 
published identifies the link to this legislation. 

 

Response:  No such references are required as no legislation has been identified in relation 
to the Common Frameworks. 

 

 

Financial Implications: N/A. 

 

 

Recommendation 5 

If the Welsh Government identifies legislation that creates, or provides powers to create, a 
UK-wide common policy framework that falls outside the list of framework areas identified 
by the core frameworks programme, it should write to this Committee and the Constitutional 
and Legislative Affairs Committee to: 
▪ notify them; and Pack Page 43



▪ explain how the framework will be incorporated into the frameworks programme or, in 
circumstances where this is not the Welsh Government’s intention, the reasons for 
developing this framework area outside the core programme. 
 
Response:  Accept.   
 
The scope of the Common Frameworks programme is clearly defined in published 
documents.  There are no plans to extend the Common Frameworks programme at this 
point.  If this situation changes I will ensure the Committee is notified and that any proposals 
for extending the Frameworks programme are published.   
 
 
 
Financial Implications: N/A. 

 
 
Recommendation 6 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government, working with all the other governments of the 
UK, creates a single web-based resource that lists all the frameworks, their state of 
progress, and links to legislation and any non-legislative products associated with them. We 
recommend that this website is active by the end of February 2020 i.e. before the next 
cohort of frameworks are released for scrutiny. 
 
 
Response: Policy in development 
 
This recommendation relates to policy which is in development and subject to 
intergovernmental discussions. Any publication process would need to be agreed and 
observed by all four nations. I will ensure that the view of the Committee is made clear in 
discussions. An update on this recommendation will be provided before the 30 March 
recess. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation 7 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government commits to continuing a dialogue between 
Welsh Government and Assembly officials, with a view to ensuring that committees have 
the information they need in sufficient time to plan for the scrutiny of frameworks. 
 
 
Response: Accept 
 
Regular discussion and information sharing between the Welsh Government and Senedd 
officials have been a feature of the development of Common Frameworks for some time. 
We are committed to continuing this and indeed intensifying it if, as we anticipate, the 
delivery process for Frameworks programme gathers momentum over 2020.  
 
Financial Implications: There are no new direct financial implications from accepting this 
recommendation. 
 
 Pack Page 44



 
 
 
 
Recommendations 8 - 10 
 
 
Recommendations 8 
We recommend that the Welsh Government provides, in response to this report, a written 
commitment to provide Assembly committees with summary outline agreements and to lay 
a copy of each summary outline agreement before the Assembly at the same time. Under 
normal circumstances this should be no less than six weeks before the associated 
provisional outline framework agreement is published. 
 
 
 
Financial Implications: N/A. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation 9 
The Welsh Government should lay before the Assembly all provisional outline framework 
agreements, together with any related implementation products such as concordats. 
 
 
 
Financial Implications: N/A. 
 
 
Recommendation 10 
Alongside each provisional framework agreement, the Welsh Government should publish an 

explanatory memorandum that includes: 

− the policy objectives of the framework; 

− the evidence to support the need for a framework in this area, including the evidence to 

demonstrate adherence to each of the framework principles; 

− a summary of the consultation process and responses received; 

− any unresolved differences in the positions expressed by the other parties to the 

agreement and how these differences are to be resolved; 

− governance arrangements, including the dispute resolution process and review 

mechanism; 

− a devolution impact assessment i.e. the extent to which this framework agreement 

constrains executive competence and the extent to which the constraints imposed by the 

framework agreement compare to those that exist under current EU frameworks; 

− a legislative impact assessment i.e. what legislation, passed or proposed, is associated 

with this framework (e.g. retained EU law, other SIs, primary legislation) and any issues of 

legislative consent; 

− a financial impact assessment; and 

− a post agreement implementation plan (to include a review process with defined 
timescales and indicators to demonstrate adherence to the framework principles). 
 
 Pack Page 45



Financial Implications: N/A  
 
Response to Recommendation 8-10: Policy in development 
 
These recommendations relate to policy which is in development and subject to 
intergovernmental discussions and would need to be agreed and observed by all four 
nations. I will make sure that the view of the Committee is made clear in the discussions. An 
update on these recommendations will be provided before the 30 March recess. 
 
 
Recommendation 11 
 
We recommend that the Business Committee considers whether it might wish to perform 
the role we suggest in terms of coordinating committee scrutiny of provisional outline 
framework agreements. 
 
This recommendation is for the Business Committee to consider.   
 
 
 
 
Recommendation 12 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government, in written response to this report, commits to 
enabling the role for the Business Committee we have described in this report, should the 
Business Committee wish to undertake such a role. 
 
This recommendation is for the Business Committee to consider and the Welsh 
Government will of course engage with any requests the Business Committee may make.  
 
 
 
Recommendation 13 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government, in written response to this report, commits to 
not enter into a framework agreement until a committee reports on a provisional outline 
framework agreement or a deadline for reporting set by the Business Committee has 
passed. 
 
Response: Accept in principle 
 
Common Frameworks will only be finalised after they have passed through a scrutiny 
process, of which Committee reports will be a fundamental part. I will share the details of 
the scrutiny process agreed by UK, Welsh, Scottish and Northern Irish Ministers with the 
Committee as soon as possible. This will help us jointly develop a form of scrutiny 
appropriate to the issues the Framework programme presents to Wales. 
 
Financial Implications: N/A  
 
 
Recommendation 14 
 
In circumstances where a committee has reported within a deadline set by the Business 
Committee, we recommend that, in written response to this report, the Welsh Government 
commits to: 

Pack Page 46



▪ respond in writing to any representations made by an Assembly committee; and, 
▪ in keeping with normal committee reporting arrangements, allow time for a debate on the 
committee’s report in Plenary before proceeding to make a framework agreement. 
 
Response: Accept in principle 
 
The detail of the Common Frameworks scrutiny procedure has yet to be finalised by the four 
administrations of the UK I will make sure that the view of the Committee is made clear in 
discussions. I will write to the Committee as soon as these scrutiny procedures have been 
agreed and update no later than 30 March. 
 
 
Financial Implications: N/A 
 
 
Recommendation 15 
 
We recommend that the final framework agreement and any associated implementing 
products are laid before the Assembly once signed. 
 
 
Response: Accept  
 
The government accepts the recommendation on the basis that the reference to  
‘framework’ refers to the Common Frameworks Programme. Final Framework agreements 
and any associated implementing products will be laid before the Senedd as part of the 
standard process for agreeing Common Frameworks. 
 
Financial Implications: There are no new direct financial implications from accepting this 
recommendation. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 16 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government lays a report before the Assembly, at least 
annually, that provides an assessment of the functioning of each framework according to 
the post agreement implementation plan we have called for in recommendation 10 to this 
report. 
 
Response: Accept 
 
The government accepts the recommendation on the basis that the reference to ‘framework’ 
refers to the Common Frameworks Programme. The Welsh Government will lay a report 
before the Senedd at least annually, which provides an assessment of the functioning of 
each Common Framework.  This will be part of the annual report laid under the inter-
institutional relations agreement between the Welsh Government and the Senedd.  The 
content of the report will be subject to further discussions within the Common Frameworks 
programme and with the four legislatures of the UK, as per our response to 
Recommendation 10.   
 
Financial Implications: There are no new direct financial implications from accepting this 
recommendation. 
 
 

Pack Page 47



 
 
 
 
Recommendation 17 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government lays a written statement before the Assembly 
whenever: 
▪ a change to a framework is proposed by any party to the framework agreement; 
▪ a change is made to any framework agreement; 
▪ a dispute arises in relation to the implementation of a framework; or 
▪ when formal dispute resolution mechanisms are triggered. 
 
Response: Policy in development 
 
This recommendation relates to policy which is in development and subject to 
intergovernmental discussions. Any publication process would need to be agreed and 
observed by all four nations. I will ensure that the view of the Committee is made clear in 
discussions. An update on this recommendation will be provided before the 30 March 
recess. 
 
Financial Implications: N/A 
 
 
 
Recommendation 18 
 
We recommend that the Llywydd considers discussing this report with the Chairs’ Forum in 
the first instance, and the question of whether to establish an inter-institutional agreement to 
underpin the scrutiny proposal made in this report. 
 
 
This recommendation is for the Llywydd to consider. 
 
Recommendation 19 
 
We recommend that the Business Committee considers our suggested approach to scrutiny 
(as described in this report) with a view to determining whether or not it would consider it 
appropriate to seek changes to Standing Orders to strengthen the scrutiny process in the 
future. 
 
 
This recommendation is for the Business Committee to consider. 
 
 
Recommendation 20 
 
We recommend that the Welsh Government considers the case for reconfiguring the 
intergovernmental approach to the frameworks programme to ensure: 
▪ it is considered in the overarching context of work to agree a shared definition of the UK 
internal market; and 
▪ that legislative and non-legislative action that could be considered as creating a UK-wide 
framework is incorporated into this programme of work. 
 
Response:  Policy in development 

Pack Page 48



 
 
On the first bullet, the intergovernmental work on the internal market progresses separately 
from the Common Frameworks programme. The linkages with the Common Frameworks 
programme are being developed in line with the Common Frameworks principles.   
 
On the second bullet, I refer the Committee to my answer to Recommendation 5. The 
Common Frameworks programme is a discrete area of work arising from the UK’s exit from 
the European Union and is distinct from other types of intergovernmental agreement.  
 
An update on this recommendation will be provided before the 30 March recess. 
 
Financial Implications: N/A 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Jeremy Miles AM 
Y Cwnsler Cyffredinol a Gweinidog Brexit  
Counsel General and Brexit Minister  

Pack Page 49



• Department 
for Exiting the 
European Union 

David Rees AM 

James Duddridge MP 
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 
for Exiting the European Union 
9 Downing Street 
SW1A2AG 

Chair of the External Affairs & Additional Legislation 
Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff, CF99 1 NA 

/-=--~~u, 

correspondence@dexeu.gov.uk 

Our ref: MC2020/00081 

z_ Of ~ anuary 2020 

Thank you for your letter of 8 January, regarding your case for two amendments to Clause 
29 of the Withdrawal Agreement Bill to acknowledge that the Assembly has a role in 
reviewing EU law during transition. I am responding on behalf of the Secretary of State. 

As you will be aware, the Bill has now completed its passage and become the EU 
(Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020. When the Committee publishes a report under section 29 
of the Act, subsection (3)(c) provides that the report must confirm that the Committee has 
taken appropriate evidence on the effect of the legislation. This could include consulting the 

devolved administrations where this is appropriate. 

It is not for the Government to instruct Committees on how to carry out their scrutiny work, 
but it is our view that there is nothing in section 29 that stops Parliament's scrutiny 

committees from consulting with committees of the devolved legislatures in preparation of 
their reports. Indeed, I would expect the committees to want to do so where it is relevant. 

Thank you for taking the time to write. 

JAMES DUDDRIDGE MP 
PARLIAMENTARY UNDER SECRETARY OF STATE 

FOR EXITING THE EUROPEAN UNION 

Pack Page 50

Agenda Item 3.2



Eluned Morgan AC/AM 
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol  
Minister for International Relations and the Welsh 
Language 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru 
               Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

3 February 2020  
 

 
 
Dear David, 
 
Thank you for your letter of 17 December 2019 and for advance sight of the External Affairs 
and Additional Legislation Committee’s (EAAL Committee) report UK international 
agreements after Brexit: a role for the Assembly. 
 
I would like to thank you and the EAAL committee for conducting this inquiry.  I have 

considered the recommendations made and my response is set out in Annex A to this letter.  

I would welcome the opportunity to discuss further when I appear before the EAAL Committee 

on 10 February. 

Yours, 

 

Eluned Morgan AC/AM 
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol  
Minister for International Relations and the Welsh Language 

Pack Page 51

Agenda Item 3.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales


Written Response by the Welsh Government to the report of the External Affairs and 
Additional Legislation Committee entitled UK international agreements after Brexit: A 
role for the Assembly. 

Welsh Government welcomes the report. Detailed responses to the report’s recommendations 
are set out below: 

Recommendation 1. To enable this scrutiny to take place, we recommend that the Welsh 
Government lays a UK Outline Approach24

 at the same time as the Outline Approach is laid 
before the UK Parliament. The Outline Approach should be accompanied by an additional 
memorandum that explains the Welsh Government’s position and the effect of implementing the 
eventual agreement on the Assembly’s legislative competence and/or the Welsh Ministers’ 
functions.  

24As referred to in the UK Government’s Command Paper 

Response: Accept in principle 

It is important that the Senedd has sufficient time and information to scrutinise the Welsh 
Government’s approach to influencing trade negotiations carried out by the UK Government. As 
trade negotiations will cover areas that both directly and indirectly relate to devolved areas of 
competence we have been calling for close involvement of the Welsh Government in related 
areas. In these areas we are calling for engagement of Welsh Government at the same time as 
UK Government Departments to ensure decisions are made by the UKG are at least fully 
informed by, if not collectively agreed with, DAs. We will need to carry out these discussions in 
confidence and respect any agreements we reach on what we can share and when.  

We believe the Devolved Legislatures should be afforded the same opportunities for scrutiny as 
the UK Parliament in areas of devolved competence. I agree with the Committee that when 
documents are laid in the UK Parliament they should also be laid before the Senedd.  

I agree that the Welsh Government should also agree to lay an additional memorandum that 

sets out our position and any clear implications for devolved legislative or executive 

competence where it is possible to do so. However, I cannot currently accept the 

recommendation that this should be at the same time as the UKG outline approach is laid. In 

order to agree to this recommendation we would need to have assurance from UKG that we will 

have access to the information to be included in the UK outline approach in advance to allow 

time for a Welsh specific memorandum to be developed. It should be noted, as set out in the 

Command Paper, that the UK Outline Approach is unlikely to set out in detail the shape of a 

final agreement. It is therefore possible, and possibly likely, that the Welsh Government would 

not be able to meaningfully identify the implications associated with the implementation of any 

final agreement, including any impact on devolved legislative or executive competence. I 

therefore cannot accept the recommendation that the memorandum must include the 

implications for devolved legislative or executive competence, as these may not be discernible 

from the UK Outline Approach. However, I commit to provide any information on these matters 

that is reasonably clear from the UK Outline Approach. 

Pack Page 52



Financial Implications: There will be some limited additional costs associated with preparing 
memoranda, including associated legal advice. This is being factored into costs associated with 
the ongoing development of a new trade policy function across Welsh Government.  

Recommendation 2. We recommend that, in circumstances where the Welsh Government is 
seeking to reach an agreement that would constrain the future legislative competence of the 
Assembly once implemented, then the Welsh Government should seek the Assembly’s consent 
before making such representations to the UK Government.  

Response: Accept in principle 

Should we secure the role we are seeking in negotiations we may be involved in lengthy 
discussions in a range of complex areas. Should it become clear an agreement is likely to 
constrain the exercise of the legislative competence of the Senedd, and should the Welsh 
Government be asked to agree to this, we will make clear any provisional agreement we may 
reach in the context of confidential negotiations would be subject to scrutiny by the Senedd. We 
will explore with the UK Government potential mechanisms to engage with the Senedd during or 
between negotiating rounds to mirror any arrangements being put in place for the UK 
Parliament.  

Domestic legislation is likely to be needed to implement such agreements. And the Senedd will 

play a key role in this, either by scrutinising and passing legislation to implement any obligations 

in relation to Wales, or giving consent to a UK Bill which implements the international 

agreement for the entire of the UK, where the Bill contains provisions within the legislative 

competence of the Senedd or modifies the legislative competence of the Senedd. 

Recommendation 3. We recommend that the Welsh Government continues to engage with the 
UK Government to ensure that negotiation documents laid in Parliament can be laid in the 
Assembly at the same time. Additionally, where the UK Parliament is offered enhanced access 
to negotiation documents, we recommend that the Welsh Government ensures equivalent 
access is granted for Assembly Members insofar as the documents relate to devolved areas 
and areas that might affect devolved competence.  

Response: Accept 

We will continue to press for the Senedd to have equivalence with the UK Parliament in these 
areas. It is a pragmatic and reasonable request we hope the UK Government will agree to.   

Financial Implications: None – already part of ongoing work 

Recommendation 4. In these circumstances, we recommend that any proposals for a revised 
process of UK Parliamentary scrutiny incorporates the need to consider the views of the 
Assembly before the ratification of an agreement. We hope that both the UK and Welsh 
Governments will undertake to support this.  

Response: Accept in Principle 

The Welsh Government is happy to endorse and support the principle of the Senedd being 
consulted as part of UK Parliamentary scrutiny process and any convention between Pack Page 53



 

legislatures. But it is not yet clear what any revised process of UK Parliamentary scrutiny might 
be proposed and this recommendation is ultimately outside of the control of the Welsh 
Government. 

The Welsh Government has consistently argued against a statutory role for the Senedd in the 
ratification process. As a result I welcome the acknowledgement in the report that UK 
Parliament does not currently have an absolute veto over international agreements and with 
that in mind the report does not go as far as to suggest veto powers for the Senedd.  

Financial Implications: None for Welsh Government 

Recommendation 5. We recommend that the Welsh Government pursues differential 
implementation of international agreements as a means of ensuring devolved interests are 
observed without causing impediment to the progress of a UK agreement.  

Response: Accept in principle 

There are numerous examples of differential implementation enabled within free trade 
agreements, which is often necessary to recognise a range of complex issues and governance 
arrangements in different sovereign nations. The US for example often excludes state-level 
provisions from its trade agreements, and EU recognises different arrangements in different 
Member States.  

We will explore relevant exclusions and annexes, ideally based on precedent, where there are 
areas relating to devolved competence in which agreement cannot be reached between the UK 
and Devolved Governments. This approach may be necessary to reflect the realities of the 
Northern Ireland protocol should divergence take place between the EU and UK (and by 
extension the UK and GB) in related areas. We will similarly make the case for Wales where 
appropriate, considering the risks and benefits, including any potential impact on the UK Internal 
Market.  

Financial Implications: There are no direct implications from the recommendation itself. The 
reality of specific positions may raise significant financial implications (for example monitoring 
and enforcement of different standards in Wales and England) and these will need to be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  

Recommendation 6. We recommend that the Welsh Government seeks a commitment from 
the UK Government to notify Welsh Ministers and the Assembly if it intends to give provisional 
effect to an international agreement (in part or in full).  

Response: Accept 

We would expect this to form a normal part of the process for agreeing an international 
agreement.  

Financial Implications: No additional costs associated with the recommendation, though 
implementation of international agreements will have associated costs dependent on the nature 
of any changes required to legislation or other arrangements.  

Pack Page 54



Welsh Government Response to Recommendations from the 
External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee Report: Draft 
International Strategy  
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

  
Introduction 
 
For decades, Wales’ relationship with the world has been defined by its relationship 
with the European Union. January 2020 marks the start of a new phase in this 
relationship and the need for a strong presence to ensure that Wales secures its place 
on the international stage has never been more important. The same month also saw 
the publication of a new International Strategy for Wales, which sets out our ambitions 
for this new relationship with Europe and the rest of the world.   
 
There are still a number of unanswered questions about the shape of the UK’s final 
relationship with Europe as we move into a period of transition. This has meant 
building a degree of flexibility into the strategy in order to respond as the relationship 
progresses.    
 
The strategy sets out three core ambitions: raise Wales’ profile, grow our economy, 
and establish Wales as a globally responsible nation. At its heart, the strategy will 
deliver positive outcomes for the people of Wales; is built on a strong set of values 
and sets us on a path to a more strategic presence and influence in the world.  
 
I welcome the Committee’s report, and the extensive evidence gathering, which has 
provided valuable input during the development of this new international strategy for 
Wales. 
 
 
Detailed responses to the Committee’s recommendations  
 
Goals and Priorities of the International Strategy 
 
Recommendation 1. We recommend that the Welsh Government’s vision statement 
provides a clear picture of the Government’s anticipated ‘final destination’ at the end 
of the lifetime of the strategy. It should set out clearly the specific outcomes the Welsh 
Government hopes to deliver through the strategy.  
 
Response: Accept 
 
The published strategy sets out three core ambitions to bring together its international 
work over the next five years. These are: 

 We will raise Wales’ profile on the international stage.  

 We will grow the economy by increasing exports and attracting inward 
investment. 

 We will establish Wales as a globally responsible nation. 
 

Pack Page 55

Agenda Item 3.4



It is difficult to set out measurable targets at a time when the relationship with Europe 
remains in a state of flux. However, the Executive Summary does set out a list of what 
we hope to achieve over the next five years.   
  
Financial Implications: None 
 
Recommendation 2. We recommend that the Welsh Government outlines in its 
response to this report how it intends to ensure that other sectors of the economy, in 
which Wales can show global leadership, are adequately represented by the Welsh 
Government in its international activities. 
 
Response: Accept 
 
Through this strategy, the Welsh Government wants to promote Wales as an 
ambitious, globally trading nation that has moved away from its traditional heavy 
industry based economy and towards an economy that is vibrant, modern and diverse 
and supports the Welsh Government’s ambitions for decarbonisation. The published 
strategy has identified three sectors to demonstrate that Wales already has the skills 
and the workforce to achieve this.  
 
In a competitive environment, we felt that it was important to demonstrate global 
leadership in certain sectors but this is a simply a gallery for us to draw attention to. 
Wales has numerous diverse sectors of which it can also be proud and which can be 
used to demonstrate its strengths and commercial offering.  
   
The International Strategy supports the priorities outlined in the Economic Action Plan 
and the two will complement each other to achieve recognition for companies in Wales 
on the international stage. In particular, the work undertaken by the Welsh 
Government to develop magnet projects around other industries, such as creative 
industries, advanced manufacturing and renewable energy, to attract investment into 
regions across Wales is a key facet of both documents. The strategy clearly sets out 
that the centres of excellence are for demonstration purposes only and that Wales 
welcomes investment from all industries. These messages have also been relayed to 
key partners, such as the Department for International Trade, to promote through its 
international business support activity.  
 
Financial Implications - None.  
 
Coordination and Delivery 
 
Recommendation 3. We recommend that the Welsh Government outlines how it 
intends to ensure that its international relations activities are better coordinated both 
within the Welsh Government, and with those of the UK Government and UK agencies, 
and whether a formalised mechanism in pursuit of this aim is required.  
 
Recommendation 4. We recommend that the final strategy sets out in greater detail 
how the Welsh Government will work with civil society organisations wishing to support 
delivery of the strategy. 
 
Response: Accept  

Pack Page 56



 
The Welsh Government recognises that it cannot deliver the international agenda 
alone. Instead, it acknowledges that there is an important role for the Minister for 
International Relations to play in bringing together the international activity that is 
undertaken across all cabinet portfolios through this strategy, as well as a wider 
coordination role around the international work being undertaken by other 
organisations and civil society. 
 
Through the development of the strategy, it has been clear that there is a desire 
amongst stakeholders to work together in a positive manner. Constructive 
engagement with UK Government departments, and its agencies, has already taken 
place and materials promoting Wales and the Welsh offer around the three centres of 
excellence are in the process of being distributed across the UK Government network.      
 
The Welsh Government is also working with groups, such as the culture and sport 
sectors, to bring together their international plans and ensure that we work together to 
maximise the impact of our overseas activity, where feasible and practical, and raise 
Wales’ profile.  The recent Rugby World Cup in Japan demonstrates how well this can 
be achieved and is a positive model for future overseas events.   
 
The strategy also sets out that two meetings a year will be held to coordinate the 
activity undertaken by civil society.   
 
 
Financial Implications – The cost of Communication and Marketing material is being 
met from existing budgets.   
 
 
Recommendation 5. We recommend that the Welsh Government publish a detailed 
suite of measurable targets and action points to sit underneath the finalised strategy. 
These could be year on year in order to provide the Welsh Government with enough 
flexibility to adapt to policy changes at a UK Government level.  
 
Recommendation 6. We call on the Welsh Government to set out in its response to 
the Committee the timeline for the publication of the delivery plans. 
 
Response: Accept 
 
The published strategy sets out a number of measurable priorities and action points 
for delivery over the next five years, including: 

 Grow the contribution that exports make to the Welsh economy by 5% 

 Plant a further 15 million trees in Uganda by 2025 

 Develop 500,000 diaspora connections 
 
Much of the activity set out in the strategy is dependent on the benefits of soft power 
and, therefore is not measurable; however, where possible, activity has been 
quantified.  It is not the intention to publish further detailed plans over and above those 
that have already been set out in the strategy.  
 

Pack Page 57



Financial Implications – No additional financial implications. Activity will be met from 
existing budgets.   
 
 
International Relationships 
 
Recommendation 7. We recommend that the Welsh Government outlines in its 
response to this report what consideration it has given to establishing a permanent 
presence in the Basque Country, and if not, to outline what alternative steps it intends 
to take to ensure that the relationship can be strengthened in the absence of a 
permanent presence.  
 
Response: Accept 
 
The strategy has identified the Basque Country as a priority regional relationship in 
Europe. This is reflected through the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding and 
by our regular contact with representatives of the Basque Government. .  
 
We are yet to make a decision about opening an office in the Basque Country. Before 
we do this, we want to review the lessons learned from the recent expansion of 
overseas offices in the last two years. In the meantime, our offices in Paris and 
Brussels work across southern Europe, including Spain. 
 
 
Financial Implications – None at this stage. 
 
 
Recommendation 8. We recommend that the Welsh Government, in its response to 
this report, outlines how it intends to take forward our previous recommendation 8, 
when the International Strategy is finalised.  
 
Response: Accept  
 
The Welsh Government is committed to regularly reviewing the effectiveness and 
performance of all of its activity, including the work undertaken by our overseas offices.   
The Committee will continue to receive its quarterly reports from the overseas offices. 
Much of the activity undertaken by the overseas offices during the final quarter of each 
financial year is focussed on the effective delivery of the annual global St David’s Day 
programme, which is arguably the largest coordinated series of events undertaken by 
the Welsh Government, and the pinnacle of its international calendar. Therefore, the 
Welsh Government believes it is appropriate for the revised key performance 
indicators should be used from Quarter 1 of the next financial year, 2020-21. 
 
Financial Implications - None.  
 
 
Recommendation 9. We recommend that the Welsh Government update us on the 
exploratory work that it has undertaken with the European Union and others to ensure 
Wales’ continued participation in European programmes, in devolved areas, after 
Brexit. 

Pack Page 58



 
Response: Accept 
 

The Welsh Government has been exploring its continued participation in a number of 
European programmes including the research and innovation fund Horizon 2020, 
Erasmus+, Creative Europe and European Territorial Co-operation, which includes the 
£100m Interreg Wales-Ireland programme . The outcome of these discussions will be 
dependent on a number of factors that will be determined during the transition period. 
For now, the Brussels Office will continue to engage and attend meetings and the 
Committee will receive an update on this work as these discussions progress.    
 
Financial Implications - None at this stage 
 
 
Recommendation 10. We recommend that the final strategy should provide clarity on 
the future role and activity of the Welsh Government’s Brussels office in light of final 
shape of Brexit. 
 
Response: Accept 
 

The published strategy sets out importance of the Brussels office in maintaining and 
strengthening our future relationship with the European Union and organisations.  At 
this stage, it states that the role of the Brussels Office will need to evolve as further 
clarity is gained on our relationship. Further information on the role of the Brussels 
Office will be provided to the Committee in due course.  
 
Financial Implications – None at this stage.  
  

 

Pack Page 59



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 60

Agenda Item 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 62

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 68

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 74

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 80

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 85

Agenda Item 8By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 88

Agenda Item 9 By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Scrutiny session with the Minister for International Relations and the Welsh Language
	Brexit update

	3.1 Paper to note 1: Correspondence from the Counsel General and Brexit Minister to the Chair regarding the Committee's report - Common policy frameworks: Assembly Scrutiny
	3.2 Paper to note 2: Correspondence from the Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Exiting the European Union to the Chair regarding the Withdrawal Agreement Bill - 29 January 2020
	3.3 Paper to note 3: Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's report on UK international agreements after Brexit
	Annex A

	3.4 Paper to note 4: Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's report on the Welsh Government's draft international strategy
	7 Scrutiny of international agreements
	UK-Morocco Association Agreement
	UK-Jordan Association Agreement
	UK-Kosovo Association Agreement
	Uzbekistan Partnership and Cooperation Agreement

	8 Consideration of forward work programme
	9 Consideration of change to the remit of the Committee



